
IN UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

FOR THE DISTRICT OF KANSAS 


UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) NO. 12-40020-RDR 
Plaintiff, ) 

) 
v. ) PETITION TO ENTER PLEA 

) OF GUILTY AND ORDER 
) ENTERING PLEA 

Jennifer Hughes-Boyles ) [Federal Rules of Criminal 
Defendant. ) Procedure, Rules 10 and II] 

The defendant represents to the Court: 

(l) My full true name is: 	 Jennifer 1. Hughes-Boyles 
I am 40 years of age. I have completed -.!.L grade. I request that all proceedings against me be 
in my true name. 

(2) 	 I am represented by a lawyer, his name is: 

Benoit M.J. Swinnen 

(3) I received a copy of the Indictment! before being called upon to plead. I read the 
Indictment and have discussed it with my lawyer. I fully understand every charge made against me. 

(4) I told my lawyer all the facts and circumstances known to me about the charges made 
against me in the Indictment. I believe that my lawyer is fully informed on all such matters. 

(5) I know that the Court must be satisfied that there is a factual basis for a plea of 
"GUILTY" before my plea can be accepted. I represent to the Court that I did the following acts in 
connection with the charges made against me in Count(s) one 
From March 14 through May 9, 2011, as a loan officer I caused Heritage bank to underwrite 
more than 2 Mio in real estate loans by providing false or altered information on borrowers' 
credit wothiness. The factual basis is more fully stated in the Plea Agreement referred to in p.18. 

(6) My lawyer has counseled and advised me on the nature of each charge, on all lesser 
included charges, and on all possible defenses that I might have in this case. 

(7) I know that I have the right to plead "NOT GUILTY" to any offense charged against 
me. If I plead "NOT GUILTY" I know the Constitution guarantees me: (a) the right to a speedy and 
public trial by a jury; (b) at that trial, and at all stages of the proceedings, the right to the assistance 
of a lawyer; (c) the right to see and hear all witnesses called to testify against me, and the right to 
cross-examine those witnesses; (d) the right to use the power and process ofthe Court to compel the 

1"Indictment" also includes "Information" 
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production ofany evidence, including the attendance ofany witnesses in my favor; and (e) the right 
not to be compelled to incriminate myself by taking the witness stand, and if I do not take the 
witness stand, no inference ofguilt may be drawn from such decision. 

(8) I know that if I plead "GUlL TY," I am thereby waiving my right to a trial, and that 
there will be no further trial ofany kind, either before a Court or jury; and further, I realize the Court 
may impose the same punishment as if I had pleaded "NOT GUILTY, II stood trial, and been 
convicted by ajury. 

(9) I know that if I plead "GUILTY, II the Court will ask me questions about the offense( s) 
to which I have pleaded, and since I will be answering these questions under oath, on the record, and 
in the presence of my lawyer, that my answers may later be used against me in a prosecution for 
perjury or false statement. 

(10) My lawyer informed me that the plea of "GUILTY" could subject me to a mandatory 
minimum sentence ofnot less than __ years (if applicable) and to a maximum punishment which, 
as provided by law, is ~ years to be followed by a term of supervised release of at least __ 
years on (Title 21 Drug Offense) and not to exceed _5_ years (greater of 18 U.S.c. § 3583(b) or 
Title 21 Drug Offense), and a fine of not less than $ nor more than $ (which may 
accrue interest if not paid at time of sentencing) for the offense( s) charged in Count( s) 1 of 
the Indictment or Information. I have also been informed that should the Court find me in violation 
of the supervised release term, the term could be revoked and an additional term of imprisonment 
not to exceed __ years may be imposed. I have also been informed that the Court may order me 
to make restitution in compliance with 18 U.S.C. § 3663 and § 3664 or as a condition ofsupervision, 
ifsuch is ordered under 18 U .S.C. § 3563, in addition to any other penalty provided by law. I further 
understand that if! am pleading "GUlL TY" to an offense which is subject to the Sentencing Reform 
Act, I cannot be released on parole and, ifimprisonment is ordered in my case, the sentence imposed 
by the Court will be the sentence I serve less any good time credit if I earn it. 

(11) I know that in addition to any other penalty imposed, including any fme or restitution 
order, the Court is required to impose a special monetary assessment in the amount of$ 100.00 . 

$ 100.00 for each count in which the offense occurred after April 24, 1996. (Not 
less than $100.00 for a felony, $25.00 for a Class A misdemeanor; if the defendant is other than an 
individual the assessment is not less than $400.00 for a felony and $100.00 for a Class A 
misdemeanor). I UNDERSTAND THIS SPECIAL ASSESSMENT MUST BE PAID AT THE 
TIME OF THE SENTENCING HEARING UNLESS THE COURT DIRECTS OTHERWISE. 

(12) I understand that ifmy case involves drug trafficking ordrug possession, the Court may 
deny or suspend my eligibility to receive federal benefits pursuant to 21 U.S.C. § 862, except for 
those specifically exempted. I understand that if this is my second or subsequent conviction for 
possession of a controlled substance, the Court may order me to complete drug treatment or 
community service as specified in the sentence as a condition for reinstatement of benefits. 

(13) I know that the Court may also order, in addition to the penalty imposed, that I give 
reasonable notice and explanation of the conviction, in such form as the Court may approve, to the 
victims of the offense. 
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(14) I have been advised and understand that if! am not a U.S. citizen, a conviction of a 
criminal offense may result in deportation from the United States, exclusion from admission to the 
United States, and/or denial of naturalization. 

(15) If! am on probation or parole in this or any other Court, I know that by pleading guilty 
here, my probation or parole may be revoked and I may be required to serve time in that case, which 
will be consecutive, that is, in addition to any sentence imposed upon me in this case. 

(16) I declare that no officer or agent of any branch ofgovernment (federal, state, or local) 
has promised, suggested, or predicted that I will receive a lighter sentence, orprobation, or any other 
form ofleniency if! plead "GUILTY," except as follows: 

My attorney did discuss how the Sentencing Guidelines may apply in my case. 

Ifanyone else, including my attorney, made such a promise, suggestion, orprediction, except 
as noted in the previous sentence, I know that he had no authority to do so. 

I know that the sentence I will receive is solely a matter within the control of the Judge. I 
do understand that there is no limitation on the information the Judge can consider at the time of 
sentencing concerning my background, character, and conduct, provided the information is reliable, 
18 U.S.C. § 3661. I do understand that if! am subject to sentencing under the Sentencing Reform 
Act and the Sentencing Guidelines issued by the United States Sentencing Commission, a sentencing 
guideline range is established. The Judge will consider a sentence from within the guideline range 
and, if my case presents features which persuade the Judge to vary from the guideline range the 
Judge could impose a sentence either above or below the recommended guideline range. In 
determining the guideline range, any variance, and the sentence to impose, the Court may take into 
account all relevant criminal conduct, which may include counts to which I have not pled guilty or 
been convicted, and take into account background characteristics, unless otherwise prohibited by 
law. I further understand that my background characteristics including, but not limited to, the 
recency and frequency of my prior criminal record, whether or not a substantial portion of my 
income resulted from criminal conduct, my role in the offense, victim-related circumstances, and 
my acceptance of responsibility for the offense, may have a specific effect on the sentence. 

I hope to receive leniency, but I am prepared to accept any punishment permitted by law 
which the Court sees fit to impose. However, I respectfully request the Court to consider, in 
mitigation ofpunishment, that I have voluntarily entered a plea of gUilty. 

(17) I understand that a u.s. Probation Officer will be assigned to conduct a thorough 
presentence investigation to develop all relevant facts concerning my case, unless the Court finds 
that there is in the record sufficient information to enable the meaningful exercise of sentencing 
authority pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 3553. The report of the presentence investigation shall contain 
the factors set forth in Rule 32. These include the classification ofthe offense and ofthe defendant 
under the categories established by the Sentencing Commission, the kinds of sentence available to 
the Court, and the sentencing range the officer believes applicable. The report shall include the 
history and characteristics of the defendant, and such other information required by the Court 
recognizing the factors set forth in paragraph (16) above. 
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(18) My plea of guilty is/~t the result of my plea agreement entered into between the 
Government attorney, my attorney, and me. 

If my plea of guilty is the result of a plea agreement, I hereby state that the terms of said 
agreement are as follows: 

See attached plea agreement. 

I fully understand that the Court is not bound by the terms of the plea agreement, and may 
accept or reject said agreement. If the Court rejects the agreement, I also understand the Court will 
not give me the opportunity to withdraw my plea ofguilty, unless the plea agreement, signed by all 
parties, is executed in accordance with Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure, Rule 11(c)(1)(A) or 
Rule 11(c)(1)(C). 

(19) I believe that my lawyer has done all that anyone could do to counsel and assist me, 
AND I AM SATISFIED WITH THE ADVICE AND HELP HE HAS GIVEN ME. 

(20) I know that the Court will not permit anyone to plead "GUlL TV" who maintains he/she 
is innocent and, with that in mind, and because I am "GUlL TV" and do not believe I am innocent, 
I wish to plead "GUILTY", and respectfully request the Court to accept my plea of "GUILTY" and 
to have the Clerk enter my plea of "GUILTY" as follows.2 

guilty as charged in the information 

(21) My mind is clear, I am not under the influence of alcohol. I currently am not under a 
doctor's care. The only drugs, medicines or pills that I took within the past seven (7) days are: 

(22) I have never been confined in an institution for the treatment ofmental illness. I have 
never been adjudicated mentally incompetent. No psychiatrist, physician, or psychologist has ever 
found me to be mentally ill. I know of no reason why my mental competence at the time of the 
commission ofthe alleged offense(s), or at the present time, should be questioned. (If there are any 
exceptions to the above statement, explain below.) 

(23) I offer my plea of "GUILTY" freely and voluntarily, and further state that my plea of 
guilty is not the result of any force or threats against me, or of any promises made to me other than 
those noted in this petition. I further offer my plea of "GUILTY" with full understanding of all the 
matters set forth in the Indictment, in this petition, and in the certificate of my attorney which is 
attached to this petition. 

2 The defendant's plea of "GUILTY" or WOT GUILTY'to each offense should be entered in the blank spaces 
provided in paragraph (20) If the Indictment charges asingle offense, a defendant who wishes to plead "GUlL TY" 
should wrtte in paragraph (20) "GUlL TYas charged in the Indictment" Ifmore than one offense is charged the 
defendant may write in paragraph (20) "GUlL TY as charged in Count(s) , " "NO TGUILTYas charged in 
Count(s) __, " 
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(24) I waive the reading ofthe Indictment in open court, and I request the Court to enter my 
plea of "GUlLTyn as set forth in paragraph (20) of this petition. 

(25) I swear that I have read, understood, and discussed with my attorney, each and every 
part ofthis Petition to Plead Guilty. and that the answers which appear in every part ofthis petition 
are true and correct. 

, ""\)... 

P.,~Signed and Sworn to by me in open court, in the presence of my attorney, 
this l3f day of February •20R. 

Subscribed and Sworn to before me this ~day of f~t-c.-Le~20 ';L,. 

(DeplJat~ I~ 
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CERTIFICATE OF COUNSEL 

The undersigned, as lawyer and counselor for the defendant Je1ll1ifer Hughes-Boyles 
hereby certifies: 

(1) I have read and fully explained to the defendant the allegations contained in the 
Indictment in this case. 

(2) To the best of my knowledge and belief, the statements, representations and 
declarations made by the defendant in the foregoing petition are in all respects accurate and true. 

(3) I explained the maximum penalty for each count to the defendant. 

(4) The plea of "GUILTY" offered by the defendant in paragraph (20) accords with my 
understanding of the facts he/she related to me and is consistent with my advice to the defendant. 

(5) In my opinion, the defendant's waiver of reading of the Indictment in open court as 
provided by Rule lOis voluntarily and understandingly made, and I recommend to the Court that 
the waiver be accepted. 

(6) In my opinion, the plea of "GUILTY" offered by the defendant in paragraph (20) of 
the petition is voluntarily and understandingly made. I recommend that the Court accept the plea 
of "GUILTY." 

(7) I have made no predictions or promises to the defendant concerning any sentence the 
Court may award, except as noted in the space below: 

I have discussed with my client how the Sentencing Guidelines may apply in his case. 

(8) I further represent to the Court that the defendant's plea of "GULLTY" is the result of 
a plea agreement. The terms of the agreement are set out in paragraph (18) of the petition, and I 
have informed the defendant that the Court is not bound by the terms of the agreement and that if 
the Court rejects the agreement, the Court will not give himlher the opportunity to withdraw hislher 
plea of "GUILTY," unless the plea agreement, signed by all parties, is executed in accordance with 
Federal Rules ofCriminal Procedure, Rule 11(c)(1)(A) or Rule 11(c)(1)(C). 

Signed by me in open court in the presence of the defendant above !red and after full 
on of the contents of this certificate with the defendant, this Q.. " day of 

'20---Lk~ 


(Attorney for the Defendant) 
i 
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ORDER 

I fmd that the plea of guilty was made by the defendant freely, voluntarily, and because 

he/she is guilty as charged, and not out of ignorance, fear, inadvertence or coercion, and with full 

understanding of its consequences. I further fmd that the defendant has admitted the essential 

elements of the crime charged and is mentally competent. 

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that the defendant's plea of "GUILTY" be accepted and 

entered as prayed for in the petition and as recommended in the certificate of hislher lawyer. 

Done in open court this 2.t-~y of f:i£&·...tJf!}--' 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

FOR THE DISTRICT OF KANSAS 


UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, } 
} 

Plaintiff, } 
} 

v. } 
} 

JENNIFER HUGHES-BOYLES, } 
} 

Defendant. } 

PLEA AGREEMENT 

The United States of America, by and through Assistant United States Attorneys, Richard 

L. Hathaway and Christine E. Kenney, and JENNIFER HUGHES-BOYLES, the defendant, 

personally and by and through defendant's counsel, Ben Swinnen, hereby enter into the following 

plea agreement pursuant to Rule 11 of the Federal Rules ofCriminal Procedure: 

1. Defendant's Guilty Plea. 

a. The defendant agrees to waive indictment and plead guilty to a One Count 

Criminal Information, charging her with Bank Fraud in violation of Title 18, United States Code, 

Section 1344. By entering into this plea agreement, the defendant admits to knowingly 

committing this offense, and to being guilty ofthis offense. The defendant understands that the 

maximum sentence which may be imposed for the offense of Bank Fraud, in violation of Title 

18, United States Code, Section 1349, is imprisonment for not more than 30 years; a fine of not 

more than $1,000,000, or both; supervised release ofnot more than 5 years; a $100 special 

assessment fee; restitution and forfeiture. 
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b. Also the defendant acknowledges that she has, or may claim an interest in 

certain personal and real property and bank accounts named in the forfeiture allegations of the 

Information as well as in a Complaint For Forfeiture In Rem case number 6:11-cv-00139-JTM

DJW (hereinafter "Complaint"). The defendant acknowledges that she wishes to resolve both her 

criminal case, as well as the forfeiture allegations in both the criminal Information and the 

Complaint, by this Plea Agreement. 

c. The defendant agrees she will not contest the forfeiture allegations in the 

Information nor the Complaint, and agrees to execute disclaimers/waivers to the property in a 

form satisfactory to the government ofall of her right, title and interest in the property named in 

the forfeiture allegation in the Information and Complaint prior to sentencing. In so doing, 

defendant acknowledges that she will forfeit all right, title and interest in the property listed in 

the forfeiture notice in the Information and the Complaint. She waives any future notice and 

hearing as to the property, and acknowledges that the real and personal property, so identified, 

constitutes property involved in the criminal activity, proceeds derived from thecrirninal activity 

and property traceable to the criminal activity of Bank Fraud in violation of Title 18 United 

States Code Section 1344, and as such are forfeitable to the United States. 

d. The defendant further agrees to the imposition of a forfeiture money 

judgment in the amount of$596,201.22, in settlement and compromise of the forfieutre monetary 

judgment. 

e. The defendant knowingly and voluntarily waives any respective right to a 

jury trial on the forfeiture of the real and personal listed in the forfeiture allegations of the 

Information and the Complaint. Defendant knowingly and voluntarily waives all constitutional, 

2 
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legal and equitable defenses to the forfeiture of the assets identified above, in any proceeding. 

Defendant agrees to the immediate entry of the preliminary order of forfeiture. Defendant agrees 

to sign any and all documents necessary to effectuate the forfeiture and transfer ofher interest 

and possession in the property identified herein to the United States. Defendant freely, 

voluntarily, knowingly and intelligently waives any right to collaterally attack any matter in 

connection with this prosecution and sentence, including the forfeiture of assets. 

f. The defendant agrees to fully and completely assist the United States in the 

identification and recovery of forfeitable assets, either domestic or foreign, which have been 

acquired directly or indirectly through the unlawful activities of the defendant, and further agrees 

to not contest any forfeiture proceedings of such assets. 

g. The defendant agrees to cooperate fully with the United States Attorneys 

Office and to provide a financial statement on a form approved by the USAO that discloses all 

assets in which defendant has any interest or over which the defendant exercises control, directly 

or indirectly, including those held by a spouse, nominee or other third party, as well as any 

transfer ofassets that has taken place in the last 5 years. 

h. The defendant agrees to Submit to an examination, which may be taken 

under oath and may include a polygraph examination. 

i. The defendant acknowledge that any waivers, consents, or releases signed 

by the defendant for purposes of the Presentence Investigation Report extends to the United 

States Attorneys Office 

3 
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j. The defendant agrees to not encumber, transfer, or dispose ofany monies, 

property or assets under defendant's custody or control, without written approval from the United 

States Attorneys Office. 

2. Factual Basis for the Guilty Plea. The parties agree the facts constituting the 

offense to which the defendant is pleading guilty are as follows: 

The defendant was at all times a Vice President ofHeritage Bank, the deposits of 
which are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. In June of 20 11, 
Ernie Beaudet, President/CEO of Heritage Bank, 3024 SW Wanamaker Rd., 
Topeka, Kansas, became suspicious of the banking practices ofJennifer 
Hughes-Boyles, whose responsibilities included residential and commercial 
lending, consumer lending and foreclosed properties transactions. In particular, 
Mr. Beaudet had observed a rapid volume growth of loans underwritten by 
Hughes-Boyles in spite of the economy at the time. During a two-month period 
from approximately March 14,2011, to May 9, 2011, Hughes-Boyles originated 
more than $2,000,000 in real estate loans. At the time Hughes-Boyles made the 
loans in question, it was Heritage Bank policy to require a 10% down payment or 
equity, and require that the borrower meet certain credit score criteria and prove 
adequate income or cash flow to support the loan. Mr. Beaudet questioned 
whether Hughes-Boyles who was the seller on these loans was truly collecting the 
10 % down payments from the borrowers as claimed in both Hughes-Boyles' 
prepared loan proposals, as well as on HUD-I settlement statements. 
Additionally, Mr. Beaudet noted a change in Hughes-Boyles' personal lifestyle 
over the same period, including her purchase of a late model Corvette. Mr. 
Beaudet requested an independent loan audit be conducted by the accounting firm 
Fiortner Bayens, P.C. of Denver, Colorado. The audit, which commenced July 
11,2011, focused on Hughes-Boyles' loan portfolio and underwriting practices. 
Per bank policy, loans are to undergo review by a committee prior to approval, 
whereby the committee would review the documentation supporting the loan 
request to insure bank policy was being followed and that the borrower qualified 
for the loan. Hughes-Boyles provided false documentation to the committee by 
fabricating or altering credit scores on applications. The committee relied upon 
this false documentation in approving the loans. On or about July 12,2011, 
auditors reported that Hughes-Boyles had purchased and simultaneously resold 
(i.e. "flipped") foreclosed real estate that Hughes-Boyles purchased from Core 
First Bank from March 14 through May 9, 2011. The properties in question were 
sold by Hughes-Boyles at a substantially higher amount than her purchase price. 
The following is an example of the way Hughes-Boyles's scheme worked: 
Hughes-Boyles purchased a duplex that had gone into foreclosure from Core First 
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Bank for $180,000. On the same day Hughes-Boyles closed on the property as the 
buyer, she would also close on the same property as the seller by reselling it to a 
buyer she had qualified for a loan at Heritage Bank. The new buyer purchased the 
property for $325,000 but in reality did not pay the down payment to Hughes
Boyles. The closing statement would reflect a substantial down payment from the 
new owner which would make it look like the person had equity in the 
transaction. By acquiring properties, and then rapidly selling ("flipping") them 
between March 14 and May 9,2011, Hughes-Boyles made a profit of more than 
$500,000. 

3. Application of the Sentencing Guidelines. The parties request that the Court 

apply the United States Sentencing Guidelines (Guidelines) to calculate the applicable sentencing 

range for use in deciding on the sentence to impose in this case. The defendant waives any right 

to have facts that determine the offense level under the Guidelines alleged in an indictment and 

found by a jury beyond a reasonable doubt; agrees that facts that determine the offense level will 

be found by the Court at sentencing by a preponderance of the evidence and agrees that the Court 

may consider any reliable evidence, including hearsay; and the defendant agrees to waive all 

constitutional challenges to the validity of the Guidelines. The parties understand this agreement 

binds the parties only and does not bind the Court. 

4. Relevant Conduct. The parties have agreed to the application of the Guidelines 

and therefore both the United States and the defendant understand that all uncharged related 

criminal activity may be considered as relevant conduct for purposes ofcalculating the offense 

level for Count 1 of the Criminal Information, in accordance with United States Sentencing 

Guidelines (U.S.S.G.) § IB1.3. 

5. Government's Agreements. In return for the defendant's plea of guilty as set 

forth herein, the United States Attorney for the District ofKansas agrees: 
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a. 	 To not file any additional charges against the defendant arising out of the 
facts forming the basis for the present indictment; 

b. 	 To recommend a sentence at the low end of the applicable guideline range 
and not request an upward departure; 

c. 	 To recommend the defendant receive a two (2) level reduction in the 
applicable offense level under U.S.S.G. § 3El.l for acceptance of 
responsibility. In addition, ifthe defendant's offense level is 16 or greater, 
the United States will move at the time of sentencing for the defendant to 
receive an additional one (1) level reduction for acceptance of 
responsibility because the defendant timely notified the government of 
herintention to enter a plea of guilty. 

The government's obligation concerning its agreements listed in ~ 5 are contingent upon 

the defendant's continuing manifestation of acceptance of responsibility as determined by the 

United States. If the defendant denies or gives conflicting statements as to her involvement, 

falsely denies or frivolously contests relevant conduct that the court determines to be true, 

willfully obstructs or impedes the administration ofjustice as defined in U.S.S.G. § 3Cl.l (or 

willfully attempts to do so), or engages in additional criminal conduct, the United States reserves 

the right to request a hearing to determine if the defendant has breached this agreement. 

In the event the Court finds the defendant has breached this plea agreement or otherwise 

failed to adhere to its terms, the United States shall not be bound by this paragraph and may 

pursue any additional charges arising from the criminal activity under investigation as well as any 

perjury, false statement, or obstruction ofjustice charges which may have occurred. The 

defendant understands and agrees that in the event the defendant violates this plea agreement, all 

statements made by the defendant subsequent to the execution of this plea agreement, any 

testimony given by defendant before a grand jury or any tribunal or any leads from such 

6 


Case 5:12-cr-40020-RDR   Document 13   Filed 02/24/12   Page 13 of 18



statements or testimony shall be admissible against the defendant in any and all criminal 

proceedings. The defendant waives any rights which might be asserted under the United States 

Constitution, any statute, Federal Rule of Criminal Procedure ll(f), Federal Rule of Evidence 

410, or any other federal rule that pertains to the admissibility of any statements made by the 

defendant subsequent to this plea agreement. 

6. Sentence to be Determined by the Court. The defendant understands that the 

sentence to be imposed will be determined solely by the United States District Judge. The 

United States cannot and has not made any promise or representation as to what sentence the 

defendant will receive. 

7. Information Provided by Defendant. The United States agrees not to use new 

information the defendant provides about the defendant's own criminal conduct except as 

specifically authorized by U.S.S.G. § IB1.8. As such, this information may be revealed to the 

Court but may not be used against the defendant in determining the defendant's applicable 

guideline range or departing above her guideline range. Defendant understands and agrees, 

however, that under V.S.S.G. § IB1.8, there shall be no such restrictions on the use of the 

information: (1) previously known to the United States; (2) revealed to the United States by, or 

discoverable through, an independent source; (3) in a prosecution for perjury or giving a false 

statement; (4) in the event there is a breach of this agreement; or (5) in determining whether and 

to what extent a downward departure as a result of a government motion pursuant to Title 18, 

U.S.C. § 3553(e) and V.S.S.G. § 5Kl.l is warranted. 

8. Monetary Penalties. 
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The defendant understands and agrees that, pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, 

Section 3613, whatever monetary penalties are imposed by the court will be due and payable 

immediately and subject to immediate enforcement by the United States as provided for in 

Section 3613. If the Court imposes a schedule of payments, the defendant understands that the 

schedule of payments is merely a minimum schedule of payments and not the only method, nor a 

limitation on the methods, available to the United States to enforce the judgment. lfthe 

defendant is incarcerated, the defendant agrees to participate in the Bureau of Prisons' Inmate 

Financial Responsibility Program, regardless of whether the Court specifically directs 

participation or imposes a schedule of payments. 

9. Withdrawal of Plea Not Permitted. The defendant understands that if the 

court accepts this plea agreement but imposes a sentence with which the defendant does not 

agree, the defendant will not be permitted to withdraw this plea of guilty. 

10. Payment of Special Assessment. The defendant understands that a mandatory 

special assessment of $1 00 per count of conviction will be entered against the defendant at the 

time of sentencing. The defendant agrees to deliver payment to the clerk of the court in the 

appropriate amount no later than the day of plea. If the defendant fails to make full payment of 

the special assessment the United States will no longer be bound by the provisions contained in 

Section 5(b) of this agreement. The burden ofestablishing an inability to pay the required special 

assessment lies with the defendant. 

11. Waiver of Appeal and Collateral Attack. The defendant knowingly and 

voluntarily waives any right to appeal or collaterally attack any matter in connection with this 

prosecution, the defendant's conviction, or the components of the sentence to be imposed herein 
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including the length and conditions of supervised release. The defendant is aware that Title 18, 

U.S.C. § 3742 affords a defendant the right to appeal the conviction and sentence imposed. By 

entering into this agreement, the defendant knowingly waives any right to appeal a sentence 

imposed which is within the guideline range determined appropriate by the court. The defendant 

also waives any right to challenge a sentence or otherwise attempt to modify or change his 

sentence or manner in which it was determined in any collateral attack, including, but not limited 

to, a motion brought under Title 28, U.S.c. § 2255 [except as limited by United States v. 

Cockerham, 237 F.3d 1179, 1187 (lOth Cir. 2001)], a motion brought under Title 18, U.S.C. § 

3582(c)(2) and a motion brought under Fed. Rule ofCiv. Pro 60(b). In other words, the 

defendant waives the right to appeal the sentence imposed in this case except to the extent, if any, 

the court departs upwards from the applicable sentencing guideline range determined by the 

court. However, if the United States exercises its right to appeal the sentence imposed as 

authorized by Title 18, U.S.C. § 3742(b), the defendant is released from this waiver and may 

appeal the sentence received as authorized by Title 18, U.S.C. § 3742(a). Notwithstanding the 

forgoing waivers, the parties understand that the defendant in no way waives any subsequent 

claims with regards to ineffective assistance of counselor prosecutorial misconduct. 

12. FOIA and Privacy Act Waiver. The defendant waives all rights, whether 

asserted directly or by a representative, to request or receive from any department or agency of 

the United States any records pertaining to the investigation or prosecution of this case including, 

without limitation, any records that may be sought under the Freedom ofInformation Act, Title 

5, U.S.C. § 552 and the defendant waives any rights conferred under the Privacy Act of 1974, 

Title 5, U.S.C. § 552a to prevent or object to the disclosure of records or materials pertaining to 
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this case. 

13. Waiver of Claim for Attorney's Fees. The defendant waives all claims under 

the Hyde Amendment, Title 18, U.S.C. § 3006A, for attorneys fees and other litigation expenses 

arising out of the investigation or prosecution of this matter. 

14. Full Disclosure by United States. The defendant understands the United States 

will provide to the court and the United States Probation Office all information it deems relevant 

to determining the appropriate sentence in this case. This may include information concerning 

the background, character, and conduct of the defendant including the entirety of the defendant's 

criminal activities. The defendant understands these disclosures are not limited to the count to 

which the defendant has pled guilty. The United States may respond to comments made or 

positions taken by the defendant or defendant's counsel and to correct any misstatements or 

inaccuracies. The United States further reserves its right to make any recommendations it deems 

appropriate regarding the disposition of this case, subject only to any limitations set forth in this 

plea agreement. The defendant also has the right to provide information concerning the offense 

and to make recommendations to the court and the United States Probation Office. 

15. Parties to the Agreement. The defendant understands this plea agreement 

binds only the defendant and the United States Attorney for the District of Kansas, and that it 

does not bind any other federal, state, or local prosecution authority. 

16. No Other Agreements. The defendant has had sufficient time to discuss this 

case, the evidence, and this agreement with the defendant's attorney and defendant is fully 

satisfied with the advice and representation provided by defendant's counsel. Further, the 

defendant acknowledges that she has read the plea agreement, understands it and agrees it is true 
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and accurate and not the result ofany threats, duress or coercion. The defendant further 

understands that this plea agreement supersedes any and all other agreements or negotiations 

between the parties, and that this agreement embodies each and every term of the agreement 

between the parties. The defendant acknowledges that the defendant is entering into this 

agreement and is pleading guilty because the defendant is guilty and is doing so freely and 

voluntarily. 

d L. Hathaway & 

4tt~iStin~ 

IVt/~V. /~r l>- Date:c£ilt'- t\ / 

~ 

/2~
RandY Hende;~hot 
Criminal Chief/Supervisor 

~~~~~ 
o."''-JI'U.L ES-BOYLES 

en Swinnen 

Date: 

Date: 2.. -tL 't - 12.. 
Attorney for Defendant JENNIFER HUGHES-BOYLES 
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